Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the PERSONNEL BOARD will be held in First
Floor 12 - Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham RG40 1BN
on MONDAY 1 JULY 2019 AT 6.00 PM

Susan Parsonage
Chief Executive
Published on 21 June 2019

Our Vision
A great place to live, an even better place to do business

Our Priorities
Improve educational attainment and focus on every child
achieving their potential
Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social and
economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business growth
Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and
supported by well designed development
Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough
Improve the customer experience when accessing Council
services

The Underpinning Principles
Offer excellent value for your Council Tax
Provide affordable homes
Look after the vulnerable
Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life
Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and fuel
efficiency
Deliver quality in all that we do

MEMBERSHIP OF THE PERSONNEL BOARD
Councillors
Carl Doran
Pauline Helliar-Symons
Simon Weeks
ITEM
NO.

WARD

Lindsay Ferris
Clive Jones

John Halsall
John Kaiser

SUBJECT

1.

None Specific

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 2019-2020
To elect a Chairman for the 2019-2020 municipal year.

2.

None Specific

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN
To appoint a Vice Chairman for the 2019-2020
municipal year.

3.
4.

PAGE
NO.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence
None Specific

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 13
March 2019 and the Minutes of the Extraordinary
Meetings held on 13 March and 26 March 2019.

5.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

6.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions

5 - 10

A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.
The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of this committee.
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Committee or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions
7.
8.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions
None Specific

PAY POLICY STATEMENT
To consider the Pay Policy Statement.

11 - 22

9.

None Specific

ANNUAL EQUALITY MONITORING WORKFORCE
REPORT
To consider the Annual Equality Monitoring Workforce
Report.

23 - 42

10.

None Specific

AGENCY WORKER USAGE
To receive an update on agency worker usage.
(contains Part 2 sheets)

43 - 48

11.

None Specific

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
The Personnel Board will exclude press and public in
order to discuss the Part 2 sheets of Agenda Item 10
above and to do so it must pass a resolution in the
following terms:
That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for
the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Act (as amended) as appropriate.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading.

Madeleine Shopland
Tel
Email
Postal Address

CONTACT OFFICER
Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
0118 974 6319
madeleine.shopland@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

Agenda Item 4.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PERSONNEL BOARD
HELD ON 13 MARCH 2019 FROM 6.30 PM TO 7.00 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Stuart Munro (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), UllaKarin Clark, Lindsay Ferris,
Pauline Helliar-Symons and Anthony Pollock
Officers Present
Madeleine Shopland, Democratic and Electoral Services Specialist
Sarah Swindley, Lead Specialist HR
Heather Thwaites, Chief Executive
105. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Alistair Auty and Charles Margetts.
106. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received.
107. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no public questions.
108. MEMBER QUESTION TIME
There were no Member questions.
109. JOB DESCRIPTION AND SHORT LIST FOR DIRECTOR, ADULT SERVICES
The Board considered the Job Description for the Director Adult Services.
During the discussion of this item the following points were made:







Councillor Ferris commented that the shared Director Adult Services with Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Council trial had been due to end in April and
then be reviewed to ascertain whether this approach should be continued. He
expressed concern that he had not been previously informed of the decision to
appoint a single Director Adult Services for Wokingham following the resignation of
the current post holder. Heather Thwaites, Chief Executive, explained that in line
with the Council’s Constitution the approval of the approval of the Tier 1 and 2
structure was a decision of the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council in
consultation with the other Directors and Executive Members. Councillor Ferris
indicated that he would feed back his concerns regarding the process to the Leader.
The Board considered the job description. Sarah Swindley, Lead Specialist HR,
commented that the job description was broadly in line with that of the other
Directors.
Councillor Pollock stated that it was important the Director Adult Services also had
an understanding of the digital agenda as lots was changing with regards to the
delivery of adult social care.
Members discussed working with partners such as Optalis. Under the section
‘Service Delivery Accountabilities’ it was proposed that reference be made to
promoting effective partnership working relationships.
Councillor Helliar-Symons highlighted what she felt to be key elements of the job
description.

5

RESOLVED: That the job description for Director Adult Services be reviewed and
approved subject to the amendments identified at the meeting.
110. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended) as appropriate.
111. JOB DESCRIPTION AND SHORT LIST FOR DIRECTOR ADULT SERVICES
The Board considered the applications for Director Adult Services.
RESOLVED: That 4 candidates progress to selection and assessment.

6

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PERSONNEL BOARD
HELD ON 13 MARCH 2019 FROM 7.00 PM TO 7.20 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Stuart Munro (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), UllaKarin Clark, Lindsay Ferris,
Pauline Helliar-Symons and Anthony Pollock
Officers Present
Madeleine Shopland, Democratic and Electoral Services Specialist
Sarah Swindley, Lead Specialist HR
112. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Alistair Auty and Charles Margetts.
113. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meetings of the Board held on 12 December and 18 December 2018
and the minutes of the Extraordinary meeting held on 18 December 2018 were confirmed
as a correct record and signed by the Vice Chairman.
114. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest received.
115. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no public questions.
116. MEMBER QUESTION TIME
There were no Member questions.
117. GENDER PAY GAP REPORT
The Board received the Gender Pay Gap report. Sarah Swindley, Lead Specialist HR
indicated that the gender pay gap required employers with 250 or more employees to
publish various figures to demonstrate how large the pay gap was between their male and
female employees.
RESOLVED: That the Gender Pay Gap report which will be published before 31 March
2019 be noted.
118.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DISCIPLINE, CAPABILITY AND GRIEVANCE POLICY &
PROCEDURE
The Board considered the Chief Executive Discipline, Capability and Grievance Policy and
Procedure.
During the discussion of this item the following points were made:


Sarah Swindley indicated that the procedure laid out in the Constitution did not
provide sufficient checks and balances when making decisions as to whether to
suspend senior officers. It had highlighted the need to either adopt the JNA Chief
Executive Handbook for dealing with disciplinary, capability and grievance issues
for Head of Paid Service, Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer, or to develop
a procedure.

7








When using the Handbook previously it was found that on some occasions
elements were unworkable or unclear. At the recommendation of the Investigating
and Discipline Committee, officers had developed the Council’s own Policy and
Procedure.
Changes to the Constitution to improve checks and balances in some areas, had
been approved. It was noted that with regards to the suspension of senior officers,
the model handbook stated that the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee
should meet to agree suspension. However, it had been felt that if consideration
was being given to suspension then this was something which need to be reviewed
quickly. The strengthening of existing checks and balances had therefore been
proposed. Councillor Pollock questioned whether the Executive Member for the
relevant service would be consulted in such cases and was informed that they
would.
Councillor Helliar-Symons commented that she felt that it was a good document.
As a result of adopting the policy and procedure it was necessary to amend the
terms of reference for the Appeals Committee and the Investigating and Disciplinary
Committee and to create a Grievance Committee.

RESOLVED: That
1)
the newly drafted Chief Executive Disciplinary, Capability and Grievance Policy and
Procedure be approved;
2)
the Terms of Reference for the Grievance Committee that would be required to be
formed as a result of adopting this policy and procedure be approved;
3)
the amended terms of reference for the Investigating and Disciplinary Committee
and Appeals Committee to reflect the new policy and procedure, be approved.
119. AGENCY WORKER USAGE
The Board received an update on Agency worker usage.
The Constitution Review Working Group had requested that the Personnel Board be
provided with a quarterly update on the use of high earning agency workers.
120. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended) as appropriate.
121. AGENCY WORKER USAGE
RESOLVED: That the Agency Worker update be noted.

8

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PERSONNEL BOARD
HELD ON 26 MARCH 2019 FROM 1.00 PM TO 7.15 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Stuart Munro (Vice-Chairman), UllaKarin Clark, Lindsay Ferris,
Pauline Helliar-Symons and Anthony Pollock
Officers Present
Sarah Swindley, Lead Specialist HR
122. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Alistair Auty and Charles Margetts.
123. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
124. PERMANENT RECRUITMENT OF DIRECTOR, ADULT SERVICES
The Board considered a report regarding the permanent recruitment of a Director Adult
Services.
125. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended) as appropriate.
126. PERMANENT RECRUITMENT OF DIRECTOR ADULT SERVICES
The Board interviewed candidates for the post of Director of Adult Services.
127. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
At this point in the meeting 13.12pm the meeting was adjourned.
128. CONTINUATION OF MEETING
At 2pm the meeting resumed.
129. ADJOURNMENT MEETING
At this point in the meeting 2.18pm, the meeting was adjourned.
130. CONTINUATION OF MEETING
At 2.45pm the meeting resumed.
131. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
At this point in the meeting 4.50pm, the meeting was adjourned.
132. CONTINUATION OF MEETING
At 5.20pm the meeting resumed.
RESOLVED: That Matthew Pope be appointed as Director, Adult Services on a salary of
£112,695 plus Performance Related Pay, subject to no objections by the Executive.

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8.
TITLE

Pay Policy Statement

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Personnel Board on 1 July 2019

WARD

None Specific

LEAD OFFICER

Deputy Chief Executive - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
Compliance with s38 of the Localism Act 2011.
Building the workforce for the future in order to deliver on Council priorities.
RECOMMENDATION
That Personnel Board approve the draft Pay Policy Statement for 2019 and recommend
its agreement to Full Council on 18 July 2019.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
Pay Policy Statement
Under sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011 we are required to prepare, approve by
Full Council (as a Part 1 item), and publish on our website a pay policy statement for the
financial year 2019/2020.
The Draft Pay Policy Statement is for your review and approval prior to submission to Full
Council. This Statement reflects our pay arrangements as at 1 April 2019.
Personnel Board are requested to approve the Pay Policy Statement and recommend it
consideration by Full Council.

11

Background

For ease, table one provides a comparison of the figures published since 2015:

Shift
15-16
to 1617

Shift
16-17
to 1718

Shift
17-18
to 1819

Shift
18-19
to 1920

2015-2016

2016-2017

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

Highest Paid

£ 143,000

£ 143,000

£ 143,000

£ 146,000

£ 150,000

0

0

2%

3%

Lowest Paid

£ 14,075

£ 14,975

£ 15,375

£ 16,394

£ 17,711

6%

3%

7%

8%

Mean

£ 28,009

£ 28,921

£ 29,398

£ 30,250

£ 31,718

3%

2%

3%

5%

Median
Ratio Highest
to Lowest
Ratio Highest
to Median

£ 23,698

£ 24,717

£ 25,988

£ 27,358

£ 27,905

4%

5%

5%

2%

10:1

9.5:1

9.2:1

8.7:1

8.5:1

-5%

-5%

-3%

-2%

6:1

5.8:1

5.4:1

5.3:1

5.4:1

-3%

-3%

-2%

2%

Analysis of Issues
This indicates that while there has been a slight increase to Senior Management pay
the gap is narrowing due to the higher increases at the bottom end of the pay-scales as
a result of National Minimum Wage increases.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council continues to face severe financial challenges over the coming years as
a result of reductions to public sector funding and growing pressures in our
statutory services. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be required
to make budget reductions of approximately £20m over the next three years and all
Executive decisions should be made in this context
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

Nil

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Nil

Nil

Nil

n/a

Nil

Nil

n/a

n/a

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
n/a

12

Cross-Council Implications
n/a
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
n/a
List of Background Papers
Attachment 1 – Pay Policy Statement 2019
Contact Sarah Swindley
Telephone No Tel: 0118 974 6076

Service Business Services
Email
sarah.swindley@wokingham.gov.uk

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Pay Policy Statement 2019
Purpose
This document covers the requirements to publish a pay policy statement under s38 of the Localism
Act 2011.
Full Council has approved the Pay Policy Statement.

Contents

Version 6.0

Page 1 of 7
Pay Policy Statement

15

Dated: May 2019

Version
1
2
3
4
5
6

Date
01/04/12
01/09/15
01/07/16
01/07/17
01/06/18
01/05/19

Description
Annual Review
Updated to comply with regulations.
Updated to comply with regulations.
Updated to comply with regulations.
Updated to comply with regulations
Updated to comply with regulations

Document Approvals
Author:

Sarah Swindley

Approval:

Personnel Board
Full Council

Contents
1.

Purpose ..................................................................................................................................... 3

2.

Definitions used in this document .............................................................................................. 3

3.

Pay Policy from April 2019 ......................................................................................................... 4

4.

Policies on redundancy and pension enhancement ................................................................... 5

5.

Pay ratios in the Council ............................................................................................................ 6

6.

Review ....................................................................................................................................... 6

7.

Other relevant Council documents ............................................................................................. 6

Version 6.0

Page 2 of 7
Pay Policy Statement

16

Dated: May 2019

1.

Purpose

1.1

Under sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011, we are required to prepare, approve by full
Council (as a Part 1 item) and publish on our website, a pay policy statement for the financial
year 2019/2020

1.2

We may amend this statement during the financial year in which it is effective; however any
change must be approved by full Council. Any amended statement will be published on our
website within 10 working days of the meeting.

1.3

In drawing up this statement, we have taken into account the guidance issued by the
Department of Communities and Local Government and the advice supplied jointly by the
Local Government Association and the Association of Local Authority Chief Executives
(ALACE).

1.4

This statement does not include staff based in our schools as this is outside the scope of the
legislation.

1.5

This updated statement was approved by Full Council on 18 July 2019.

2.

Definitions used in this document

2.1

Under the current structure of the Council, the following posts are included in the definition of
‘Chief Officer’:


Chief Executive

Director, Adult Services

Director, Children’s Services

Director, Corporate Services (S151 Officer)

Director, Localities & Customer Service
2.2
Although not falling within the definition of Chief Officer under the Localism Act, the pay policy
applying to the following posts is as set out in Section 3 below for Senior Managers:















2.3

Assistant Director, Adults Social Care
Assistant Director, Business Services
Assistant Director, Children Social Care
Assistant Director, Commercial Property
Assistant Director, Customer & Localities
Assistant Director, Delivery & Infrastructure
Assistant Director, Digital and Change
Assistant Director, Education
Assistant Director, Governance Services (Monitoring Officer & Returning Officer)
Assistant Director, Housing, Income & Assessment
Assistant Director, Housing and Place Commissioning
Assistant Director, Integrated Mental Health
Assistant Director, People Commissioning
Assistant Director, Place
Assistant Director, Quality Assurance & Safeguarding Standards

Employees who are not chief officers; all other employees (including those employed on a
casual basis) employed directly by the Council.

Version 6.0

Page 3 of 7
Pay Policy Statement

17

Dated: May 2019

This policy does not cover the remuneration of other ‘workers’ employed by the Council, as
employees of agencies or as self-employed consultants.
2.4

Lowest paid employee; is on the second pay step of grade 1 on the Council’s pay scales
(£17,771 per annum full time (37 hours per week) or £9.18 per hour).

2.5

Median salary; £27,905 (full-time equivalent). This is a measure of the ‘average’ salary for
employees in the Council. It is defined as the ‘midpoint’ salary, such that there is an equal
probability of falling above or below it.

2.6

Mean salary; £31,718 (full-time equivalent). This is an alternative measure of the ‘average’
salary for employees in the Council. The arithmetic mean is defined as the sum of all the
salaries divided by the number of salaries.

2.7

Highest paid employee: the Chief Executive is paid £150,000.

3.

Pay Policy from April 2019

3.1

Policy on level and elements of remuneration for Chief Officers
3.1.1 The Council benchmarks its pay rates against relevant comparator groups. For Chief
Officers the Council pays “spot salaries” (i.e. no incremental range) and seeks to
position itself appropriately in the market in terms of pay.
Their salary is increased by nationally negotiated increases agreed by the:



Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Executives and;
Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers

Similarly, terms and conditions agreed nationally by these bodies are also applied, with
local variations as appropriate
3.1.2 There is a performance related pay (‘PRP’) scheme for Chief Officers, approved by the
Personnel Board and based on an assessment of performance against objectives.
3.1.3 Salary upon appointment will be made in line with 3.1.1
3.1.4 In accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 and the Code
of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency, we publish
annually the remuneration of our senior staff on our website.
3.2

Policy on level and elements of remuneration for Senior Managers

3.2.1

Assistant Directors report to either a Director of the Chief Executive. There are 2 levels,
evaluated using the Korn Ferry HAY Job Evaluation methodology:
SM3: £69,929 to £77,214
SM4: £78,758 to £83,226

3.2.2

Payment arrangements for local returning officer are in line with the “Dorset Scheme”
developed by Dorset County Council and uprated annually in line with any pay increase
agreed by the National Joint Council (NJC) for local government services.

Version 6.0

Page 4 of 7
Pay Policy Statement

18

Dated: May 2019

3.2.3

All other terms are conditions are in line with all other employees and described in 3.4
onwards.

3.3

All other employees
3.3.1 The Council applies the national pay agreements reached by the:




National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services
National Joint Council (NJC) for Youth & Community Services
Soulbury Committee

3.3.2 Local variations are applied as appropriate.
3.3.3 All jobs below Assistant Director (excluding those covered by national Youth &
Community and national teaching-related Soulbury grades) are evaluated using either
the Peodesy job evaluation system or Korn Ferry HAY, depending on whether they
have been through the restructure programme.
3.3.4 All jobs are assigned to a grade within the Wokingham Borough Council salary
structure on the basis of the job evaluation score. The Council benchmarks its pay
rates against a comparator group and will seek to position itself appropriate to the
market in terms of pay.
3.4

Salary on appointment
3.4.1 Appointments will normally be made to the minimum point of the grade. Managers
may take into account the previous experience and skills of the employee to offer
appointment above the salary minimum for the post.

3.5

Incremental progression
3.5.1 Each of the Grades has a series of incremental steps, progression within which is
subject to satisfactory performance. Increments can be withheld in the event of
unsatisfactory performance.
3.5.2 Progression by more than one increment, up to the maximum of the grade, can be
made in acknowledgement of exceptional performance.

3.6

Additional payments – all employees
3.6.1 The Council will consider the use of market supplements to be applied to specific posts
in the event of recruitment and /or retention difficulties. Where such supplements are
introduced they will be applied, reviewed and withdrawn in accordance with the
Council’s policy.
3.6.2 Additional payment may be made for additional hours, overtime, undertaking higher
responsibilities, and for non-standard working arrangements such as stand-by or
evening work, or for exceptional working conditions.
3.6.3

4.

All employees can claim for qualifying payments under our travel & expense policy.

Policies on redundancy and pension enhancement

Version 6.0

Page 5 of 7
Pay Policy Statement

19

Dated: May 2019

4.1

Our Policies and Procedures for Organisational Change, Retirement and Employer
Discretions outline how we will approach redundancy including redundancy pay

4.2

We calculate redundancy pay using the individual’s actual weekly salary.

4.3

We do not enhance the number of statutory week’s redundancy pay an individual is entitled to
under the Employment Rights Act 1996.

4.4

The Local Government Pension Scheme contains provision for employers to enhance pension
payments. Employers are required to determine how they will use these discretionary
provisions. We have determined generally not to use our discretion to enhance pension
payments by either additional years or additional pension.

4.5

In certain circumstances, eligible employees may request early retirement or flexible
retirement. (Flexible retirement gives access to accrued pension, whilst allowing the scheme
member to continue working).In both these cases, there must be sufficient financial or other
benefit to the Council for such retirements to be approved and if there is a cost associated
with the request, approval sought from the Personnel Board.

5.

Pay ratios in the Council

5.1

It is the policy of the Council to ensure that the ratio of the salary of the highest paid officer
and the lowest paid officer is well below the 20:1 ratio recommended as a maximum in the
terms of reference for the 2011 Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector.

5.2

As at 1st April 2019, pay ratios within the Council stand as follows;



5.3

Highest : lowest = 8.5:1
Highest : median = 5.4:1

This is based on the following salary packages:




Highest paid (Chief Executive) = £150,000
Lowest paid (Grade 1 SCP 9) = £17,711
Median (average) = £27,905

6.

Review

6.1

This policy will be reviewed at least annually and more frequently if necessary to respond to
any changes.

6.2

The Personnel Board is responsible for recommending the policy statement for approval

7.

Other relevant Council documents
Policies & Procedures relating to:
 Travel Expenses
 Retirement
 Honoraria
 Market Supplements
 Overtime

Version 6.0

Page 6 of 7
Pay Policy Statement

20

Dated: May 2019




Pension’s discretions
Organisational Change

Pay Scales relating to:




Version 6.0

National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services
National Joint Council (NJC) for Youth & Community Services
Soulbury Committee

Page 7 of 7
Pay Policy Statement

21

Dated: May 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.
TITLE

Annual Equality Workforce Monitoring Report

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Personnel Board on 1 July 2019

WARD

None Specific

LEAD OFFICER

Deputy Chief Executive - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
To ensure compliance with our Public Sector Equality Duty
RECOMMENDATION
That Personnel Board approve the 2019-2020 Annual Equality Workforce Monitoring
Report.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
The report provides comparison workforce and demographic statistics and an analysis of
if our workforce is reflective of our population and proportionate across salary scales.

23

Background
This annual report provides information on employees obtained from our monitoring
processes and procedures, which allows us to meet the reporting requirements outlined
in the Equality Act 2010. Using this data we can understand the composition of our
people, help identify areas for action, and publish the information required to show
compliance with the duty. The report for 19-20 is attached and produced by the
Employment Equalities Working Group.

Analysis of Issues
N/A – see Attachment 1 which contains the analysis.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council continues to face severe financial challenges over the coming years as
a result of reductions to public sector funding and growing pressures in our
statutory services. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be required
to make budget reductions of approximately £20m over the next three years and all
Executive decisions should be made in this context
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

Nil

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Nil

Nil

Nil

n/a

Nil

Nil

n/a

n/a

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
N/A
Cross-Council Implications
N/A
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
N/A
List of Background Papers
Attachment 1 – 2019 – 2020 Annual Equalities Workforce Monitoring Report
Contact Sarah Swindley
Telephone No Tel: 0118 974 6076

Service Business Services
Email
sarah.swindley@wokingham.gov.uk

24

3

Wokingham Borough Council
Equality Monitoring Workforce Report
2019-2020
Purpose
The Equality Act 2010 introduced a new General Equality Duty which requires organisations to:




Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act
Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not
Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those
who do not

In addition to this there is a Specific Equality Duty which requires organisations to:




Publish information which demonstrates compliance with the Equality Duty
Set and publish equality objectives

This annual report demonstrates the Council’s compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty
in relation to its workforce. It captures data about Wokingham Borough Council employees
(excluding Schools) and relates this to the protected characteristics and other relevant indicators
along with actions taken to address any gaps.

Page 1 of 17

25

Version
1
2
3
4

Date
12/10/16
22/02/18
09/08/18
31/05/19

Description
1st report
2nd report
3rd report
4th report

Document Approvals
Author: Employment Equality Steering Group
Approval: CLT and Personnel Board

Contents
Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 4
Borough Demographic ................................................................................................................... 4
Council Information ....................................................................................................................... 4
Gender ........................................................................................................................................... 5
Gender Profile of Wokingham Borough .................................................................................... 5
Gender Profile of the Council .................................................................................................... 6
Gender Profile of Starters .......................................................................................................... 6
Gender Profile of Leavers .......................................................................................................... 6
Salaries Across Gender Profile (as percentage of entire workforce) ........................................ 7
Salaries Across Gender Profile (as percentage of gender within each salary band) ................. 7
Age ................................................................................................................................................. 7
Age Profile of Wokingham Borough .......................................................................................... 8
Age Profile of the Council .......................................................................................................... 8
Age Profile of Starters................................................................................................................ 9
Age Profile of Leavers ................................................................................................................ 9
Salaries Across Age Ranges (as percentage of entire workforce) ............................................. 9
Disability ...................................................................................................................................... 10
Disability Profile of Wokingham Borough ............................................................................... 11
Disability Profile of the Council ............................................................................................... 11
Disability Profile of Starters ..................................................................................................... 11
Disability Profile of Leavers ..................................................................................................... 12
Salaries Across Disability Profile .............................................................................................. 12
Ethnicity ....................................................................................................................................... 12
Ethnicity Profile of Wokingham Borough ................................................................................ 13
Ethnicity Profile of the Council ................................................................................................ 13
Ethnicity Profile of Starters...................................................................................................... 14
Page 2 of 17

26

Salaries Across Ethnicity Profile............................................................................................... 14
Religion and Sexual Orientation .................................................................................................. 15
Grievance, Capability and Disciplinary Action ............................................................................. 15
How we meet the duty ................................................................................................................ 15
Future Activity ............................................................................................................................. 16

Page 3 of 17

27

Introduction
Under the Equality Act 2010 Wokingham Borough Council (WBC) has a legal duty to advance
equality of opportunity for people with protected characteristics, eliminate unlawful
discrimination and promote good relations between people who share a characteristic and those
who do not. We also have a responsibility to promote equality and recognise diversity;
understanding our own workforce and how it relates to the community we serve.
To assist us in undertaking these duties, we review relevant information and data to recognise
areas of strength and identify areas for improvement. We then work with relevant groups to
develop necessary actions and monitor performance.
It is important that the Council’s workforce reflects the composition of the local population to
ensure it is representative of the community we serve, thereby helping to ensure that
appropriate services are provided to all citizens.
This annual report provides information on employees obtained from our monitoring processes
and procedures, which allows us to meet the reporting requirements outlined in the Equality Act
2010. Using this data we can understand the composition of our people, help identify areas for
action, and publish the information required to show compliance with the Equality duties.

Borough Demographic
The Borough population was estimated to be 163,353 in 2017. The demographic composition
has changed markedly over the course of the past 15 years. For example, the 2001 census
showed that 6.1% of the population were classified as Black or Minority Ethnic (BME), while in
2011 this had risen to 11.75%.

Council Information
Wokingham is a small unitary authority that employs just over 1000 staff, with 54 Councillors,
10 of whom sit on the Executive. We are one of 6 Unitary Authorities in Berkshire and work in
a complex multi-agency context, in close partnership with the other unitary authorities.
Budgetary pressures on local authorities are severe. Added to which Wokingham Borough
Council is the worst funded unitary authority in England. We rely on council tax as our main
income source and, therefore, the accountability relationship with our residents is very strong
and real. There have also been changes to national legislation that directly impact the way we
deliver our services. Therefore it is very important that we, as an organisation, are prepared for
these challenges to ensure the ongoing success of our Borough. We decided the best way to
do this was to ensure we had a clear vision with meaningful and realistic priorities, focusing on
the needs of our residents.
When we monitor the composition of the workforce we consider a variety of factors (e.g.
starters, leavers and salary) across several protected characteristics (i.e. age, gender, disability,
ethnicity, religion and sexual orientation). The data used in this report was drawn on 4 April
2019.
The majority of the information collected is through self-declaration and is reliant on the
provision of this data from the workforce.
Page 4 of 17

28

As this is the second report there is limited trend data available. However, this will be reported
in future years in order to determine whether recommended interventions have made an
impact.

Gender
While the Borough has an equal split of men and women, the Council has a gender profile where
over 74% of the workforce is women and 26% men, and appears to have remained stable over
the last 3 years’.
The salary profile appears to show a fairly consistent level of men achieving each salary range,
while there is a skew for women to occupy lower salary ranges, which is largely as a result of the
opportunities the Council offers for flexible working arrangements. The percentage of females
earning £50,000 is 35.29%, against a national average of 32% (Source: CMI: Women in Leadership
White Paper).
Our mean gender pay gap is 13.88% against a national average mean gender pay gap of 17.1%
(October 2017 ONS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings). While female workers are well
represented in the ‘upper middle’ and ‘upper’ pay quartiles they make up greater proportions of
the ‘lower middle’ and ’lower’ pay quartiles and this pulls the average earnings of female workers
down.
Gender Profile of Wokingham Borough
Males
49%

Females
51%

Page 5 of 17

29

Gender Profile of the Council
Male
26%

Female
74%

Gender Profile of Starters
Male, 30.24%

Female, 69.76%

Gender Profile of Leavers

Male, 24.31%

Female, 75.69%

Page 6 of 17

30

Salaries Across Gender Profile (as percentage of entire workforce)
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

<£15,000

Female

1.25%

£15,000 £19,999
17.50%

Male

0.00%

3.33%

£20,000 £29,999
26.67%

£30,000 £39,999
12.50%

£40,000 £49,999
3.33%

£50,000 +

10.00%

10.00%

8.33%

4.58%

2.50%

Salaries Across Gender Profile (as percentage of gender within each salary band)
100.00%
80.00%
60.00%
40.00%
20.00%
0.00%
Female
Male

<£15,000

£20,000 £29,999
72.73%

£30,000 £39,999
55.56%

£40,000 £49,999
28.57%

£50,000 +

100.00%

£15,000 £19,999
84.00%

0.00%

16.00%

27.27%

44.44%

71.43%

64.71%

35.29%

Age
The Council’s age profile is not representative of the Borough its workforce serves, with a lower
proportion (11.79%) of workers being under 30 years of age compared to 17% of the population.
We did however, have more starters than leavers within this age band and this may be indicative
of the work undertaken to promote Apprenticeships that was highlighted in last year’s action
plan.
When considering salaries across age ranges, there is slight skew towards lower salaries for those
below 30 years of age, but this skew is moving slightly for each of the following ranges,
translating in to older members of the workforce generally commanding higher salaries.

Page 7 of 17

31

Age Profile of Wokingham Borough
25%
23%
22%
20%

19%

19%

17%
15%

10%

5%

0%

<29

30-39

40-49

50-59

60+

Age Profile of the Council
35.00%
30.80%
30.00%
25.00%
27.19%

18.35%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
11.79%

11.88%

5.00%
0.00%
< 29

30-39

40-49

Page 8 of 17

32

50-59

60 +

Age Profile of Starters

30.00%
24.39%
25.00%

21.46%
20.49%

20.00%
21.95%
15.00%
10.00%
11.71%
5.00%
0.00%
<29

30-39

40-49

50-59

60+

Age Profile of Leavers
30.00%
24.00%
25.00%
18.46%

24.00%

20.00%

15.00%

18.46%
15.08%

10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
< 29

30-39

40-49

50-59

60 +

Salaries Across Age Ranges (as percentage of entire workforce)
12.00%
10.00%
8.00%
6.00%
4.00%
2.00%
0.00%

<£15,000

< 29

0.62%

£15,000 £19,999
1.86%

£20,000 £29,999
7.08%

£30,000 £39,999
2.65%

£40,000 £49,999
0.18%

£50,000 +

30-39

0.00%

2.39%

7.08%

5.75%

3.27%

0.88%

40-49

0.00%

3.81%

9.73%

6.81%

4.16%

1.86%

50-59

0.09%

6.28%

10.62%

7.08%

4.34%

3.01%

60 +

0.00%

2.57%

2.30%

3.01%

1.59%

0.88%

Page 9 of 17

33

0.09%

Salaries Across Age Ranges (as percentage of age within each salary band)
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

<£15,000

< 29

87.50%

£15,000 £19,999
10.99%

£20,000 £29,999
19.23%

£30,000 £39,999
10.49%

£40,000 £49,999
1.31%

£50,000 +

30-39

0.00%

14.14%

19.23%

22.73%

24.18%

13.16%

40-49

0.00%

22.51%

26.44%

26.92%

30.72%

27.63%

50-59

12.50%

37.17%

28.85%

27.97%

32.03%

44.74%

60 +

0.00%

15.18%

6.25%

11.89%

11.76%

13.16%

1.32%

Disability
From the information provided, it appears only 5% of the workforce have a disability, and this is
not as high as we would expect as 30% of the workforce have not declared their status. This data
is reasonably consistent with other local government organisations where 30% of respondents
report that they have 5% or more workers with a disability but 31.4% don’t know (source XPertHR
“Disability 2014: What Percentage of your organisation’s workforce has a disability”). Even
without complete data our overall workforce is more than reflective of the community we serve
where 2.84% have a declared long term health problem or disability (source Office of National
Statistics 2011 census).
We have had a larger number of leavers who had not declared their status meaning the reporting
has improved by 2%, but this still suggests that further work needs to be undertaken to
encourage staff to declare their status. The council holds ‘Disability Confident’ status, the new
Government Scheme, replacing the previous two ticks guaranteed interview scheme.
The profile of those with a disability across pay ranges appears to indicate no issues in this area.

Page 10 of 17

34

Disability Profile of Wokingham Borough
Yes
12%

No
88%

Disability Profile of the Council

Yes
5%

Prefer not to
say
0%

Not declared
30%

No
65%

Disability Profile of Starters
60.32%
70%
60%
35.71%

50%
40%

30%
3.17%

20%
10%

0.79%

0%
No

Not declared

Yes

Page 11 of 17

35

Prefer not to
say

Disability Profile of Leavers

46.15%

48.92%

50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

4.92%

No

Not declared

Yes

Salaries Across Disability Profile(as percentage of entire workforce)
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%
No

<£15,000 £15,000 - £20,000 - £30,000 - £40,000 - £50,000 +
£19,999 £29,999 £39,999 £49,999
0.09%
11.33%
22.65%
15.31%
8.14%
3.54%

Not declared

0.53%

5.22%

12.57%

8.50%

4.69%

2.92%

Yes

0.09%

0.35%

1.59%

1.50%

0.71%

0.27%

Salaries Across Disability Profile (as percentage of people with disabilities within each
salary band)
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
No

<£15,000 £15,000 - £20,000 - £30,000 - £40,000 - £50,000 +
£19,999 £29,999 £39,999 £49,999
12.50%
67.02%
61.54%
60.49%
60.13%
52.63%

Not declared

75.00%

30.89%

34.13%

33.57%

34.64%

43.42%

Yes

12.50%

2.09%

4.33%

5.94%

5.23%

3.95%

Ethnicity
Ethnicity reporting is well established and it is likely that the workforce is actually more diverse
than the population it serves, with 74% of the workforce being White British compared to 88%
Page 12 of 17

36

of the Borough (based on 2011 census data). There appears to be a trend in increasing the level
of diversity with more starters than leavers being from ethnic minority groups. However, there
are a still large percentage of employees who are not declaring their ethnicity and this still needs
to be addressed. Saying that, the action from last year’s plan to show New Starters how to
declare the equal opportunity data at Corporate Induction appears to have been successful.
The salary profile for those from ethnic minority groups appears to be representative of the
general distribution.

Ethnicity Profile of Wokingham Borough

90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

88.25%

11.75%

Non Ethnic Minority
Group

Ethnic Minority Group

Ethnicity Profile of the Council

80.00%
70.00%
74.14%

60.00%
50.00%

16.83%

40.00%
30.00%

9.03%

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Ethnic Minority Group

Non Ethnic Minority
Group

Page 13 of 17

37

Not declared

Ethnicity Profile of Starters
64.88%
70%
60%
50%

34.63%

40%
30%
20%

0.49%

10%
0%
Ethnic Minority

Non Ethnic Minority

Not declared

Ethnicity Profile of Leavers
75.69%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%

30%
20%

16.62%
7.69%

10%
0%
Ethnic Minority

Non Ethnic Minority

Not declared

Salaries Across Ethnicity Profile (as a percentage of the whole workforce)
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

<£15,0
00

Ethnic Minority Group

0.00%

£15,00
0£19,99
9
0.62%

£20,00
0£29,99
9
3.45%

Non Ethnic Minority Group

0.18%

14.69% 29.65% 19.65% 10.18%

5.22%

Not declared

0.53%

1.59%

1.06%

Page 14 of 17

38

3.72%

£30,00
0£39,99
9
1.77%
3.89%

£40,00
0£49,99
9
0.71%

£50,00
0+

2.65%

0.44%

Salaries Across Ethnicity Profile (as percentage of ethnicity within each salary band)
100.00%
80.00%
60.00%
40.00%
Religion and Sexual Orientation
20.00%
0.00%
<£15,0 £15,00 £20,00 £30,00 £40,00 £50,00
The Council provides an opportunity for00its employees
to
on
00 -provide
0 - information
00 +their religion
£19,99
£29,99
£39,99
£49,99
or belief and sexual orientation; however the confidence to do so does not appear to be
9 to provide
9
9 analysis,
9
sufficient as there is limited information available
any
with 85% of the
Ethnic Minority Group
0.00% 3.66% 9.38% 6.99% 5.23% 6.58%

workforce not declaring. There has been an increase in declaration from last year where 88%
Non Ethnic Minority Group 25.00% 86.91% 80.53% 77.62% 75.16% 77.63%
had not declared, however still not sufficiently statistically significant to report.
Not declared

75.00% 9.42% 10.10% 15.38% 19.61% 15.79%

Grievance, Capability and Disciplinary Action
Our records would indicate a total of 4 workers went through a formal casework process during
the reporting period including capability, disciplinary, probation and grievance cases. A
reduction from the previous 3 years (23 in 2015-2016, 16 in 2016-2017 and 9 in 2017-2018).
It is therefore not possible to look at any potential trends with regard to protected
characteristics and a piece of investigative work needs to be conducted into how self-serve has
impacted the recording of Grievance, Capability and Disciplinary action.

How we meet the Equality Duty
There are several practices already in place, and work already started that demonstrates our
commitment to Equality. These are:












Guaranteed Interview Scheme for any candidate who declares a disability and meets the
essential criteria of the role
All roles are advertised on our website and are accessible to all employees unless there
is someone who meets the requirements of the role and is awaiting redeployment
The Employment Equality Steering Group, whose purpose is to ensure that no potential
or existing member of staff is excluded from career or training opportunities due to their
age, disability, sex, gender reassignment, pregnancy, maternity, race (which includes
colour, nationality and ethnic or national origins), sexual orientation, religion or belief,
or because someone is married or in a civil partnership.
Equal Opportunity training is already in place
Recruitment training includes learning in relation to equality and diversity and
unconscious bias
Full Equality Impact Assessments take place whenever there is a major change that
affects employees
Reasonable building and equipment adjustments to make offices accessible to all
Enhanced maternity pay by offering 12 weeks’ half pay on the condition that the
employee returns to work for at least 3 months’ upon completion of their maternity
leave
Meeting our statutory duties with regard to leave for family care. E.g. Shared parental
leave, Paternity leave and pay, Care Leave, Adoption Leave & Pay
Elevate Wokingham who seek Apprenticeships and Work Experience for 16-19 year olds
not in education, employment or training. Wokingham Borough Council has taken on 6
Apprentices in the last financial year
Page 15 of 17

39



Our dormant staff café ‘Shuters’ has been opened up to provide work experience and
for vulnerable and disadvantaged young people from Addington School to enable the
young people to acquire catering skills

Activity in 2018/2019
Subject
Recruitment

Training

Career
opportunities

Data Collection

Case Work

Action
Target
Identify a way to capture the By April 2019
recruitment data to identify trends
and risks

Outcome
This will be
reviewed
in
19/20 as part
of the revisit of
the
process
improvements
put in place as
part of 21st
century
programme
Increase take up of Apprenticeships 41 by 31 March 32
were
in order to encourage younger people 2019
achieved
into the Council.
Introduce
a
biennial
Equal All staff have
Done
Opportunities refresh to ensure that refresher training
employees are up to date and aware
of
their legal duties and
requirements
Continue to ensure EIA are 100% completion 100%
completed at each stage of the 21st of EIA
completion
Century
Council
restructure
programme to review that there is
equality in opportunities for the new
roles
HR continue to closely monitor and n/a
n/a
review BME data in relation to
Capability, Disciplinary and Grievance
Increase staff confidence in disclosing 80% of workforce 70% disclosed
their personal information to disclosed
for disability
increase the accuracy of workforce (currently
and 17% for
monitoring
by
ensuring disclosed 67% for religious
confidentiality
and
anonymity Disability and
beliefs
(particularly sexual orientation, 12% for religious
religious beliefs & disability)
beliefs & sexual
orientation)
Improve accuracy of Case Work
All Disciplinary,
Only
4
reporting by:
Grievances and
recorded.
a) Offering managers bite size
Capabilities
Training to be
training in capability,
recorded as they rolled out in
disciplinary and grievance
should be.
Q2
2019,
b) Reporting effectiveness of
reporting to
working practice to
Leadership
leadership team
team
commenced
Page 16 of 17

40

Activity planned for 2019/2020
The data and information we hold appears to demonstrate that no significant issues face us at
this point, but there remain areas where we can continue to improve. Therefore, the action plan
for this year is as follows:
Subject
Recruitment

Data Collection

Case Work

Action
Target
Identify a way to capture the By April 2020
recruitment data to identify trends
and risks
Increase take up of Apprenticeships 41 by 31 March
in order to encourage younger people 2020 (25 per
into the Council.
annum plus the
no- achieved in
2017 to maximise
use of the levy
Increase staff confidence in disclosing 80% of workforce
their personal information to disclosed
increase the accuracy of workforce (currently
monitoring
by
ensuring disclosed 67% for
confidentiality
and
anonymity Disability and
(particularly sexual orientation, 12% for religious
religious beliefs & disability)
beliefs & sexual
orientation)
Improve accuracy of Case Work
All Disciplinary,
reporting by:
Grievances and
a) Offering managers bite size
Capabilities
training in capability,
recorded as they
disciplinary and grievance
should be.
b) Improving guidance on
recording
c) Reporting effectiveness of
working practice to
leadership team

Page 17 of 17

41

Outcome

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10.
TITLE

Agency Worker usage

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Personnel Board on 1 July 2019

WARD

None Specific

LEAD OFFICER

Deputy Chief Executive - Graham Ebers

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
To ensure that Council Tax payers money is being used to provide safe and effective
services

RECOMMENDATION
That Personnel Board note the current Agency Worker usage.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
The Constitution Review Working Group (CRWG) has asked that the Lead Specialist,
Human Resources provide a quarterly report to Personnel Board with regard to the use of
long term high cost agency workers to ensure there is a robustness in officer decision
making and effective use of council tax payers’ money.

Background
The CRWG has asked that Personnel Board receive a quarterly report on Agency
Usage and Cost for those Agency Workers who have been in place for longer than 6
months and that cost over £100,000 (Full time equivalent).

Analysis of Issues
Agency Workers make up 8.2% of our workforce. 1% of the workforce is made up of
Agency Workers who have been in place for more than 6 months and cost more than
£100,000 per annum (based on a full time equivalent salaried employee).
Attachment 1 provides details of these roles.
Personnel Board are asked to note this information.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council continues to face severe financial challenges over the coming years as
a result of reductions to public sector funding and growing pressures in our
statutory services. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough Council will be required
to make budget reductions of approximately £20m over the next three years and all
Executive decisions should be made in this context

43

How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

Nil

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Nil

Nil

Nil

N/A

Nil

Nil

N/A

N/A

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
N/A
Cross-Council Implications
N/A
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
Attachment 1 contains information that makes individuals identifiable.
List of Background Papers
Attachment 1 - Agency Worker Usage – over 6 months and equivalent cost of over
£100,000 FTE per annum
Contact Sarah Swindley
Telephone No Tel: 0118 974 6076

Service Business Services
Email
sarah.swindley@wokingham.gov.uk

44

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

45

This page is intentionally left blank

